
PUBLIC NOTICE 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 

FOR 

CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT RISK 

FOR 
 

New Santa Maria High School 

In 

Santa Maria Independent School District 

 

Santa Maria ISD will be accepting Qualifications from Construction Managers in a one-step process 

until February 6, 2015, 2:00 p.m. at the Santa Maria Independent School District, Administration 

Building at 11119 Old Military Rd, Santa Maria, Texas 78592.   

 
Proposal No.          Description             Bid Opening Date         Time__ 

 #CM-0115                (RFQ) Request for Qualifications      Friday, February 6, 2015          3:00 PM 

 Addendum 1                 For Construction Manager 

 

 

The anticipated construction cost for these projects is approximately $ 8.3 million.  The scope and 

schedule for the project as currently defined are described by the Request for Qualifications. 

 

The  Request  for  Qualifications  may  be  obtained  by calling  the  Business office  at (956) 565-

6308 or picking one up at the address below. Please address all Submittals to: 

 

Mr. Enrique Cuellar 

Business Office 

 11119 Old Military Rd. 

Santa Maria, Texas 78592  

Reference: CM-0115 

 

Santa Maria I.S.D. reserves the right to waive any informalities and to reject any or all Qualifications. 
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CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT RISK 
REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Texas Education Code Section 44.031, it is the intention of Santa 

Maria ISD to select via a One Step Request for Qualification process a Construction Manager at Risk 

for the construction of the previously stated project for the Santa Maria Independent School Districts 

in Santa Maria, Texas.  The scope and schedule for the project as currently defined are described by 

the attached materials. 

 

Qualifications are to include the information requested in the Questionnaire below in the sequence 

and format prescribed.  In addition to and separate from the requested information, organizations 

submitting may provide supplementary materials further describing their capabilities and experience. 

 

Qualifications (3 copies) are to be submitted to:  

 

Mr. Enrique Cuellar 

Santa Maria Independent School District 

11119 Old Military Rd. 

Santa Maria, Texas 78592 

Reference: CM-0115 

 

Immediately thereafter, the Santa Maria School District and its Architect will review the information 

submitted and make a recommendation to the Board.  The selection process will follow the 

stipulations of the Texas Education /Code Section 44.031. 
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CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT RISK 
SCHEDULE 

 

 

New High School Budget - $ 8.3 mil 
 

 
The new High School will be an approximate 56,148 sq. ft., structural slab construction, brick 
veneer and both masonry (gymnasium and cafeteria) and stud back-up (classroom and 
administration areas) with a steel structural system. 

 
This school is scheduled to be completed in twelve (12) months construction time.  The schedule 
for this project is as follows: 

 
Design Development – ongoing - scheduled for completion May 2015 

Construction Document – ongoing – scheduled for completion May 2015  

Bidding and Negotiations – August 2015 

Construction – September 2015-August 2016
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CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT RISK 
QUESTIONNAIRE 

 
Please provide the following information in the tabbed sequence and format prescribed by this 
questionnaire.  Supplemental materials providing additional information may be attached, but the 
information requested below is to be provided in this format. 

 
1. Firm Information: 

Name of firm: 
Address of principal office: 
Phone, Fax: 
Form of Business Organization (Corporation, Partnership, Individual, Joint Venture, 
Other?): 
Year founded: 
Primary individual to contact: 

 
2. Organization: 

2.1 How many years has your organization been in business in construction in its 
current capacity? 

2.2 How many years has your organization been in business under its present name? 
Under what other or former names has your organization operated? 

2.3 If your organization is a corporation, answer the following:  Date of incorporation, 
State of incorporation, President’s name, Vice-President’s name(s), Secretary’s 
name, Treasurer’s name. 

2.4. If your organization is a partnership, answer the following:  Date of organization, 
type of partnership (if applicable), names of general partner(s). 

2.5 If your organization is individually owned, answer the following:  Date of 
organization, name of owner. 

2.6 If the form of your organization is other than those listed above, describe it and 
name the principals. 

 
3. Licensing: 

3.1 List jurisdictions and trade categories in which your organization is legally qualified 
to do business and indicate registration or license numbers, if applicable. 

3.2 List jurisdictions in which your organization’s partnership or trade name is filed. 

 
4. Experience: 

4.1 List the categories of work that your organization normally performs with its own 
forces.  Would you propose to do any work with your own forces or to bid all work to 
subcontractors? 

4.2 List any subcontractors in which your organization has some ownership and list the 
categories of work those subcontractors normally perform. 

4.3 Claims and suits. (If the answer to any of the questions below is yes, please attach 
details.) 

4.3.1 Has your organization ever failed to complete any work awarded to it? 
 
 

4.3.2 Are there any judgments, claims, arbitration proceedings or suits pending or 
outstanding against your organization or its officers? 
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4.3.3 Has your organization filed any lawsuits or requested arbitration with regard to 
construction contracts within the last five years? 

 
4.4 Within the last five years, has any officer or principal of your organization ever been 

an officer or principal of another organization when it failed to complete a 
construction contract? (If the answer is yes, please attach details.) 

4.5 Current work: 
List the major construction projects your organization has in progress, giving the 
name and location of project, owner, architect, contract amount, percent complete 
and scheduled completion date. 

4.6 Work over last 5 years: 
List major projects (particularly educational facilities) constructed by your 
organization over the last 5 years.  For each project, provide the name, nature of 
the project/function of the building, size (SF), location, cost, completion date, owner 
and architect, and the manner in which your organization was selected (bid or RFP 
or other method). 

 
5. Financial Information: 

5.1 Attach a financial statement, preferably audited; include your organization’s latest 
balance sheet and income statement showing the following items: 

 Current assets (e.g., cash, joint venture accounts, accounts receivable, 
notes receivable, accrued income, deposits, materials inventory, and prepaid 
expenses.) 

 Noncurrent assets (e.g., net fixed assets, other assets). 

 Current liabilities (e.g., accounts payable, notes payable (current), accrued 
expenses, provision for income taxes, advances, accrued salaries and 
accrued payroll taxes.) 

 Noncurrent liabilities (e.g., notes payable). 

 Capital accounts and retained earnings (e.g., capital, capital stock, 
authorized and outstanding shares par value, earned surplus and retained 
earnings). 

5.2 Name and address of firm preparing attached financial statement and date thereof. 
5.3 Is the attached financial statement for the identical organization names under item 1 

above?  If not, explain the relationship and financial responsibility of the  
organization whose financial statement is provided (e.g., parent, subsidiary). 

5.4 Will the organization whose financial statement is attached act as guarantor of the 
contract for construction? 

5.5 Provide name, address, and phone for bank reference. 
5.6 Surety:  Name of bonding company, name and address of agent.  A bond for 100% 

of the construction cost will be required upon submission of the GMP. 
Proof of ability of bond will be required prior to selection. 

 
6. Experience with, Concepts for working as a Construction Manager at Risk: 

 
6.1 Describe your organization’s concepts for working in a team relationship with the 

Owner and Architect during the design and construction of major projects.  Describe 
your organization’s methods for estimating costs, and for scheduling during the 
design/documents phases. Which (one or more) of your projects listed above best 
exemplify these concepts and experience? 

 
6.2 Cost Estimates: 

Attach a sample conceptual cost estimate prepared during the design phase of a 
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project, and a sample of the final cost estimate/breakdown used to fix the contract 

amount for the construction of the same project. (The identity of the project may be 
concealed.  The intent is to see the nature and format of the cost information 
provided). 

 
6.3 Savings: 

Describe your organization’s concept for the disposition of savings realized during 
construction.  Is it acceptable to return the full amount of the savings to the owner? 

6.4 Contingencies: 
Describe your organization’s concept for cost contingencies during design? 
During construction?  What is your organization’s concept for the disposition of 
contingency funds after the completion of the project? 

6.5 Cost Information: 
Your firm would be required to make all cost information during design and 
construction available to owner and architect.  Describe how this information would 
be furnished and how the owner and architect would be assured that it is complete 
and accurate. 

 
7. Personnel: 

Given the scope and schedule of the project, identify the specific Project Manager, 
Estimator, and Superintendent who would work on the project.  Provide a resume and 
references for each individual. 

 
8. Owner/Construction Manager Agreement: 

We propose to base the Owner/Construction Manager Agreement on the AIA Document 
Please note any major exceptions/issues you would raise relative to this document. 

 

Fees: 

It is anticipated that the School District will enter into a fixed sum contract with the construction 
manager at risk.  A proposed fee quote will be required and should be divided into two parts: 

 
Pre-construction Services Fee 

 
To include personnel expenses, project estimates, preliminary project schedule, value 
engineering and constructability reviews, overhead and profit, and other services described 
below, through the Design Phase portion of the Project.  (See Attachment #1 Pre-construction 
Services List.) 

 
Construction Phase Services Fee 

 
To include overhead and profit to administer the project construction, including, but not 
limited to, the services listed below through the Construction Phase of the Project. (See 
Attachment #2 Construction Services). 

 
The fee quoted will not include direct project management expenses (on-site personnel expenses) 
or direct project expenses.  These items shall be included in the construction managers anticipated 
general conditions.  Describe the method of payment your firm would desire, including when 
various fees would be due. 
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CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT RISK 
CRITERIA FOR SELECTION 

 
Per the Texas Education Code, title 2. Public Education, Chapter 44, Fiscal Management, Sub- 
chapter B, Purchases; Contracts, 44.031, Purchasing Contracts, Santa Maria ISD may consider the 
following in determining to whom to award the contract for Construction Manager at Risk services 
for the construction of the previously stated projects for the Santa Maria Independent School 
Districts in Santa Maria, Texas.  The Santa Maria ISD will select a firm who’s goods or services 
provide the best value for the district based on the following: 

 

 Santa Maria ISD 

New High School Selection Criteria 

 
 
 
 
 

Possible 
Score 

 
 
 
 
 

Weight 
Factor 

 
 
 
 
 

Total 

     

1 The reputation of the vendor and of the vendor’s goods or services 10 2 20 
2 The quality of the vendor’s goods or services 15 1 15 

3 The vendor’s past relationship with the District, District representative or Architect 10 2 20 

4 The extent to which the goods or services meet the District’s needs 15 1 15 
 

5 

The impact on the ability of the District to comply with laws and rules relating to 
historically underutilized businesses 

 

5 

 

1 
 

5 
6 Proposed Price. 15 1 15 
7 Any other relevant factor that the school district would consider in selecting a vendor 10 1 10 

 
 Total   100 

 

Extrapolated from this list, the following criteria will be considered in selecting the construction 
manager. 
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EXPERIENCE 

 
(1) the reputation of the vendor and of the vendor’s goods or services. 

(2) the quality of the vendor’s goods or services. 

(3) the vendor’s past relationship with the District, District representative or 

Architect. 

 

 How substantial is the firm’s recent experience in the construction of projects of 
comparable size and complexity? 

 How substantial is the firm’s experience in providing construction services for 
educational facilities of comparable size, complexity? 

 Is the firm knowledgeable about, experienced in the Central Texas construction market? 

 How substantial is the firm’s recent experience in providing pre-construction services for 
projects of comparable size and complexity? 

 Has the firm worked for the District in the past?  If so, was that work satisfactory to the 
District? 

 

 
DISTRICT’S NEEDS 

 
(4) the extent to which the goods or services meet the District’s needs. 

 

 Does the description provided by the firm of its pre-construction services evidence both 
understanding and capabilities of the process in general and as it applies to this specific 
project? 

 Does the construction manager appear to have the capability to meet the District’s 
schedule objectives? 

 
HUB/MBE/WBE PARTICIPATION 

 
(5) The impact on the ability of the District to comply with laws and rules relating 

to historically underutilized businesses. 

 

 Describe the means and methods in which your firm attracts bidders that qualify as HUBs 
or MBE/WBEs. 

 Describe any other means in which your firm promotes HUB or MBE/WBE participation. 

 
COST ISSUES 

 
(6) The purchase price (Fee & General Conditions). 

 
 Is the firm’s fee competitive? 

 Are there any costs in addition to the General Conditions? 

 If savings are realized during construction, what percentage of those savings is returned 
to the District?  100?  Less? 

 What is the firm’s concept for the disposition of any unused contingency included in the 
project cost?  100% to the District?  Less? 
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ORGANIZATION, LICENSING, FINANCIAL INFORMATION, PERSONNEL, REFERENCES, 

SAMPLE CONTRACT 

 
(7) any other relevant factor that a private business entity would consider in 

selecting a vendor. 

 

 How long has the firm been in business providing the type of services sought by the 
District? 

 Does the firm’s organizational structure, licensing and financial information indicate that the 
firm is capable of undertaking this project? 

 Do the personnel proposed for the project appear to have the appropriate experience, 
capabilities? 

 Did the references listed (both owner’s and architect’s) have a favorable experience with 
the organization? Would they work with them again?  How comparable was their project 
to this project? 

 Is AIA Document acceptable? 

 
44.034 NOTIFICATION OF CRIMINAL HISTORY OF CONTRACTOR 

 
(a) A person or business entity that enters into a contract with a school District must give 

advance notice to the District if the person or an owner or operator of the business entity 
has been convicted of a felony.  The notice must include a general description of the 
conduct resulting in the conviction of a felony. 

(b) A school district may terminate a contract with a person or business entity if the District 
determines that the person or business entity failed to give notice as required by  
Subsection (a) or misrepresented the conduct resulting in the conviction.   The District must 
compensate the person or business entity for services performed before the termination of 
the contract. 

(c) This section does not apply to a publicly held corporation. 

Added by Acts 1995, 74
th 

Leg., ch. 260, ss. 1, eff. May 30, 1995. 
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ATTACHMENT 1 

 
PRE-CONSTRUCTION 

SERVICES 

 
 

 Establish overall PROJECT BUDGET 
 

 Develop an OVERALL MANAGEMENT PLAN AND CPM MANAGEMENT of critical 
design and construction dates in order to accomplish the state objective. 

 

 SCHEMATIC DESIGN 

 
- Prepare conceptual estimates. 
- Obtain special surveys and soil readings as needed. 
- Hold technical review sessions with Owner and Architect. 
- Monitor evolving design and make suggestions with regard to equipment, 

material, and systems selections. 
- Analyze the potential for use of systems components. 
- Consult with the Owner and Architect on means and methods of construction. 
- Review schematic design documents. 
- Submit to the Owner and the Architect special inputs relative to time and cost 

control. 
- Identify certain areas of phased construction. 
- Prepare “trade-off” studies relative to value engineering. 
- Revise a critical data schedule. 
- Prepare a professional construction CPM network for the issuance of bid 

packages. 
 

 DESIGN DEVELOPMENT 
 

- Prepare a detailed estimate based on available design drawings in a CSI or 
subcontractor bid format. 

- Review the design development documents with the Owner and the Architect. 
- Revise and update the critical data schedule. 
- Prepare a market analysis regarding local suppliers and material. 
- Develop and arrange pre-bid packages. 

 

 CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS 
 

- Prepare and update estimates in the CSI format at the 50%, 75%, and 100% 
working drawings stage. 

- Review the drawings and specifications relative to bid packages. 
- Develop bid package requirements. 
- Schedule and conduct pre-bid conferences. 
- Review and analyze bids. 
- Update project budget and schedule consistent with actual bids. 
- Develop a detailed CPM network schedule. 
- Provide a Guaranteed Maximum Price for the project. 
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ATTACHMENT 2 

CONSTRUCTION 

PHASE SERVICES 

 Manage the GMP DOCUMENTATION, including: 

 
- Detailed quantity surveys, pricing. 
- Procurement strategy and implementation. 

 

 Establish the BUDGET BY BID PACKAGE 
 

 Prepare a detailed SCHEDULE derived from detailed quantities for each bid package to 
satisfy milestones. 

 

 SITE UTILIZATION STUDY 
 

- Coordinate mobilization and plan logistical requirements. 
- Project office and material staging locations. 
- Ingress, egress. 
- Security requirements of owner. 

 

 Prepare SUBCONTRACTOR BID PACKAGES, including: 

 
- Project Manual, outlining the requirements of the construction. 
- Schedule (by bid package interface). 
- Detailed scope of work. 
- Detailed document listing. 
- Proposal forms for each bid package. 
- Form of contract and purchase order forms. 
- Insurance requirements. 
- Bonding requirements. 
- Prequalification of bidders. 
- Other special requirements. 

 

 CONDUCT PRE-BID MEETINGS for each bid package, addressing: 

 
- Project requirements. 
- Document review for specific questions. 
- Sequence/schedule review. 
- Site restrictions. 
- Other questions raised during discussions. 

 

 RECEIVE BIDS: 
 

- Advertise or solicit for bids. 
- Conduct bid openings. 
- Prepare bid tabulations for each bid package. 
- Review proposals for compliance with contract documents. 
- Review apparent low bidders’ qualifications, past experience and liquidity. 
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 CONDUCT PROPER AWARD OF CONTRACTS/PURCHASE ORDERS: 

 
- Conduct pre-award meetings. 
- Review schedule of values. 
- Review subcontractors’ general conditions. 
- Review scope of work. 
- Identify shop drawing requirements. 
- Perform document review and specifications review. 
- Review contractors’ personnel: 

- Project Managers 
- Superintendents 
- Foremen 

- Implement Partnering Program if owner elects to do so. 
- Establish quality requirements and standards. 
- Review sequence and Schedule. 
- Identify accounting requirements. 
- Review insurance requirements. 
- Review safety and security requirements. 
- Recommend award of contracts. 

 

 PREPARE AND ISSUE AS CONSTRUCTION MANAGER (or for the Owner): 

 
- Contracts 
- Purchase orders. 
- Rental agreements. 
- Budget adjustments for all transactions. 
- Computerized accounting for tracking and projections. 

 

 PROVIDE COORDINATION AND MANAGEMENT OF SUBCONTRACTORS 
 

- Establish site organization, including work and storage areas. 
- Establish jobsite management organization and jobsite procedures. 
- Maintain daily log for jobsite record. 
- Provide general conditions work to meet project requirements. 

- Prepare and issue change orders and contracts. 
- Prepare subcontractor change orders and contracts. 
- Monitor construction cost and projections. 
- Prepare and maintain cash flow projection for Owner. 
- Monitor and maintain quality control. 
- Shop drawing control. 
- Equipment and material control. 
- Provide and monitor overall progress and short interval scheduling. 
- Prepare billings and progress payments. 
- Conduct subcontractor coordination meetings. 
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- Provide coordination between subcontractors. 
- Prepare and receive requests for information. 
- Prepare agendas and conduct weekly safety and progress meeting. 
- Prepare and distribute weekly safety and progress meeting minutes. 
- Establish subcontractor progress payment procedure for processing and 

payment. 
- Monitor subcontractor pay applications. 

 

 MONTHLY REPORT: 

 
- Summarize project financial status. 
- Review and summarize past month’s construction performance. 
- Project the coming month’s construction activities. 
- Present status report on change orders - delays and time extensions. 
- Identify problems that threaten construction quality, cost and schedule. 

 

 Provide CHANGE ORDER CONTROL: 

 
- Implement system for change orders. 
- Allocate change order responsibilities. 
- Review change order requests from subcontractors. 
- Negotiate change orders with subcontractors. 
- Submit recommendations to Owner. 

 

 Establish a QUALITY MANAGEMENT PROGRAM: 

 
- All members of the team participate in the quality control effort. 
- Project Scope Review: 

- Intended purpose. 
- Are the project needs met? 
- Existing conditions reviewed. 
- Future needs. 

- Incorporate of Restrictive Conditions in documentation to include: 
- Social environment, influence of neighbors, environmental impact. 
- Natural conditions, grounds and peripherals. 
- Research on legal requirements. 
- Research on existing structures, facilities. 

- Review of Design Development for: 
- Complete construction documents in the order they are to be purchased and 

constructed. 
- Complete documents for pre-purchased equipment. 
- Design compatibility with future operation and maintenance. 
- Constructability 
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- Recommend selection, monitor and assist outside testing and inspection agencies: 
- Underground piping 
- Soils 
- Concrete 
- Rebar 
- Miscellaneous steel 
- Structural steel 
- Mechanical systems 
- Electrical 
- Life safety systems 
- Energy management systems 
- Others as required 

- Work with area superintendents of subcontractors: 
- Prepare operations to minimize quality control problems. 
- Require formalized quality management program from subcontractors: 
- Ensure conformance to project’s quality standards previously established. 
- Follow-up to assure correction of deficiencies on test reports. 

 

 ACCOUNTING Functions: 

 
- Insurance requirements 
- Schedule of values review 
- Labor cost reports 
- Material cost reports 
- Unit cost reports 
- Monthly detail cost sheet 
- Monthly job costs 
- Accounts payable 
- Monthly project billing 

 

 JOB SAFETY Objectives: 

 
- Conduct weekly safety meeting: 
- Implement project safety requirements. 
- Review subcontractor safety programs. 
- Subcontractor conformance, initiate knowledge of OSHA requirements: 
- Subcontractor responsible for costs and damages. 
- Submission of accident and injury reports. 
- Subcontractor safety programs 
- Require subcontractor safety representative. 
- Require forty-eight hour reports. 
- Require weekly tool box safety meeting. 
- Maintain safety meeting minutes: 
- Inform subcontractors of procedures 
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- Enforce alcohol and drug programs by subcontractors. 
- Implement and maintain clean-up. 

 

 JOBSITE SECURITY Functions: 

 
- Monitor and control employee vendor and public access to the jobsite. 
- Monitor and control material and equipment deliveries to the jobsite. 
- Monitor and control material and equipment being removed from jobsite - 

material release form. 
- Monitor and control site traffic. 
- Monitor and perform periodic checks for alcohol and drugs. 
- Monitor and control tools. 
- Monitor material storage. 
- Monitor trailers and all equipment within. 
- Maintain proficiency first-aid and CPR programs. 

 

 HUMAN RESOURCES: 
 

As construction managers we provide assistance and policies on Equal 
Employment Opportunity, minority and women-owned business enterprises, 
sexual harassment or discrimination, drug abuse program, labor relations, 
employment transfers or reassignments and assuring proper personnel for 
project requirements. 

 

 PROJECT POST CONSTRUCTION Services: 
 

- Provide operating and maintenance manuals. 
- Secure and assemble warranties or guarantees. 
- Provide check-out of equipment. 
- Instruct operating personnel in equipment operating and maintenance 

procedures. 
- Assist in actual start-up of equipment. 
- Implement close-out procedures and ensure requirements are met: 

- Subcontractors’ and vendors’ final payment 
- Resolution of claims 
- Final change orders 
- Lien releases 
- Final lien waivers 
- Consent of sureties 
- Assist Owner in enforcement of warranties or guaranties. 

- Conduct walk-through with Owner and Contractor after 1 year. 


